
MINUTES 
 

LOWER LOUP NATURAL RESOURCES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

  
 
August 29, 2024                                              Ord, Nebraska 
 

The August meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources 
District was held at the Headquarters Office, 2620 Airport Drive, Ord, Nebraska, on August 29, 
2024. Chairman Thoene called the meeting to order at 4:56 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Directors in attendance: 
 
James C. Adams      Rollie D. Amsberry, Treasurer   
Darwin B. Anderson     Timothy E. Bartak   
Robert L. Bauer     James Eschliman  
Randy Kauk      Justin W. King    
Thomas L. Knutson     Gary A. Kruse     
Larry Mohrman, Secretary    Alan Petersen     
Chad J. Podolak     Gerald Smith    
Henry J. Thoene, Chairman    Rick Vlach, Vice Chairman  

 
Directors absent: 

      
Colton R. DeBower     Matt Lukasiewicz  
Todd Nitsch      Alexander L. Vlach 
 

Staff in attendance: 
 
Russell G. Callan, General Manager   Tylr Naprstek, Assistant General Manager 
Kim A. Lyions, Financial Secretary   Irene Kreifels, Administrative Assistant 
Alan Bartels, I&E Coordinator   Brant Bechtold, Information Specialist 
Dell Harris, Water Resources Specialist   Brian Kolar, Projects Technician  
Ann Freeman, Water Programs Secretary  Aron Lewis, Conservation Forester  
Cacey Wilken, Water Modeling Coordinator 
 

Guests in attendance: 
 
Brooks Bechtold, NRCS, Ord 
 



VERIFICATION OF MEETING NOTICE AND ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
  

Chairman Thoene asked for verification of the meeting notice. General Manager Russ 
Callan stated that the agenda was current, and that the meeting notices were properly published 
in all newspapers, posted at the NRD Headquarters office in Ord, on the NRD website, and in the 
eight field office locations.  
 
EXCUSED ABSENCES 
 

Thoene stated that Directors DeBower, Lukasiewicz, and Nitsch had asked to be excused 
and that A. Vlach was absent; however, no one had heard from him.  
 

Eschliman motioned, seconded by Adams, to excuse absent Directors DeBower, 
Lukasiewicz, and Nitsch. Motion carried by electronic vote. Directors voting yes: Adams, 
Amsberry, Anderson, Bartak, Bauer, Eschliman, Kauk, King, Knutson, Kruse, Mohrman, 
Petersen, Podolak, Smith, Thoene, and R. Vlach. Directors absent: DeBower, Lukasiewicz, 
Nitsch, A. Vlach.  
 
MINUTES 
 
 Thoene asked for corrections and/or additions to the July 25, 2024, Board meeting 
minutes. Hearing none, he announced that the minutes would stand as presented.  
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
 Russell Callan, General Manager, highlighted expenditures of $6,839.41 to LRE Water 
Inc. for the Buffalo County Modeling project; $16,342.47 to JEO Consulting Group for work on 
the Sargent Drainage and Mud Creek WFPO Projects; $8,653.50 to JEO Consulting Group for 
work on the Pibel Lake Expansion Project; $9,295.33 to Capital One Bank for two months 
electricity for the Columbus Recharge Project; and $4,740.00 to B52 Spraying LLC for drone 
spraying done on the Columbus Recharge Project.  
 

R. Vlach motioned, seconded by Kruse, to approve the August 29, 2024, Treasurer’s 
Report. Motion carried by electronic vote. Directors voting yes: Adams, Amsberry, 
Anderson, Bauer, Eschliman, Kauk, King, Knutson, Kruse, Mohrman, Petersen, Podolak, 
Smith, Thoene, and R. Vlach. Director not present for vote: Bartak. Directors absent: 
DeBower, Lukasiewicz, Nitsch, A. Vlach. 
 

The Treasurer’s Report Approval Policy states that the approved expenditures are to be 
published and each director who has per diem and/or reimbursement of expenses included in 
such financial reports, abstains from voting for the approval of his or her own per diem and/or 
expense reimbursement. 
 
 
 



PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 Thoene asked for public comments. None were heard.  
 

Knutson motioned, seconded by Kauk, to suspend the regular Board Meeting until 
after the Public Hearing on the Lower Loup NRD FY 2025 Budget and the Special Hearing 
to Set Final Tax Request. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ON LOWER LOUP NRD FY 2025 BUDGET 
 

Henry Thoene: I am Henry J. Thoene, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Lower 
Loup Natural Resources District. 
   

Our purpose for meeting here this evening is to hear public comments on the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2024 Budget of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District. Notice of this public 
hearing has been published according to law in The Grand Island Independent and The 
Columbus Telegram. 
  

The time is 5:10 p.m. I will formally open the Budget Hearing. I will ask for comments 
from the public concerning the proposed budget. I will ask that you give your name, legal 
residence, and whom you represent.  
 

None heard 
 
 Henry Thoene: I will now ask for comments from the Directors of the Lower Loup 
Natural Resources District. 
 

None heard 
 
 Henry Thoene: If there are no other comments, I will close this hearing at 5:11 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO SET FINAL TAX REQUEST FOR FY 2024 
 

Henry Thoene: I am Henry J. Thoene, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Lower 
Loup Natural Resources District. 
  

Our purpose for meeting here this evening is to take testimony relating to the governing 
Board’s decision to set the levy at a different amount than the Platte County Clerk’s preliminary 
property tax rate as established pursuant to Nebraska Revised Statute 77-1601.02.  

 
Notice of this public hearing has been published according to law in The Grand Island 

Independent and The Columbus Telegram. 
  

The time is 5:12 p.m. I will formally open the Hearing. I will ask for comments from the 
public. I will ask that you give your name, legal residence, and whom you represent. 

 



None heard 
  

Henry Thoene: Seeing none, I will now ask for comments from the Directors of the 
Lower Loup Natural Resources District. 
 

None heard 
 

Henry Thoene: If there are no other comments, I will close the hearing at 5:13 p.m.  
Now we will proceed with the regular agenda. All those in attendance are welcome to remain. 
We will need a motion to resume the regular meeting.  
 

Smith motioned, seconded by Podolak, to resume the regular Board of Directors 
meeting. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 
LLNRD FY 2025 BUDGET 
 

Thoene introduced Resolution FY2025-001 as follows:  
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BUDGET 
 OF THE LOWER LOUP NATURAL RESOURCES DISTRICT 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lower Loup Natural Resources District, a political subdivision organized 
under the laws of the State of Nebraska; and  
 

WHEREAS, said Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has 
held two (2) Budget Work sessions to hear suggestions as to what reoccurring expenses and new 
projects the District will incur in the coming Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and  
 
            WHEREAS, said Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has 
compiled a list of proposed funding sources to help cover those expenses and projects planned 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District 
recommends a budget expenditure of $22,534,207.48 for Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and  
 

WHEREAS, said Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has 
held a public hearing in compliance with the provisions of State Statute Sections 13-501 to 13-
513, for the purpose to hear support, opposition, criticism, suggestions, or observations from the 
general public and the Board of Directors of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District relating 
to their proposed budget and no dissenting comments were heard;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Lower Loup 
Natural Resources District assembled on this 29th day of August, 2024, adopt Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Budget as presented.  
 



Eschliman motioned, seconded by Kruse, to adopt Resolution FY2025-001 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BUDGET OF THE LOWER LOUP NATURAL 
RESOURCES DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025. Motion carried by electronic 
vote. Directors voting yes: Adams, Amsberry, Bartak, Bauer, Eschliman, Kauk, King, 
Knutson, Kruse, Mohrman, Petersen, Podolak, Smith, Thoene, and R. Vlach. Director 
abstaining: Anderson. Directors absent: DeBower, Lukasiewicz, Nitsch, A. Vlach. 
 
FINAL TAX REQUEST FOR FY 2025  
 

Thoene introduced Resolution FY2025-002 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION 
TO 

APPROVE ADDITIONAL ONE PERCENT INCREASE 
 
          WHEREAS, the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has completed and approved 
their FY-2025 Budget; and 
 
   WHEREAS, a special public hearing was held on August 29, 2024, as required by law, to 
hear and consider comments concerning the property tax request; and 
 
   WHEREAS, Nebraska Revised Statute 13-519 provides a governmental unit may exceed 
the limit provided in subsection (1) of this section for a fiscal year by up to an additional one 
percent upon the affirmative vote of at least seventy-five percent of the members of the governing 
body constituting a quorum authorized to conduct business; and 
 
   WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has 
determined the one percent allowable increase is necessary for the financing of proposed District 
programs and projects;  
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Lower Loup 
Natural Resources District approves the adoption of the additional one percent increase allowed 
to their FY-2025 budget. 

 
Smith motioned, seconded by Peterson, to adopt Resolution FY2025-002: 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ADDITIONAL ONE PERCENT INCREASE. Motion carried 
by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 

King asked if someone besides the Board has to approve the budget. Callan stated that the 
Board approves it and staff forwards it to counties for the assessment to take place. Thoene asked 
if we know what other NRDs are doing this year. Callan stated he was not sure, but he thought a 
few were going up.  
 

Mohrman asked the difference between the plus and minus and growth on the valuations. 
Callan stated that growth is new construction and the increase or decrease is based on the 
valuations of existing properties.  



King asked why Boone County would have a higher increase than Platte County. Callan 
stated that it might have something to do with when they re-do their valuations. He added that we 
had one year that we had to change everything to Custer County because they had the highest 
valuation and the next year the highest was Platte County again, and has been since.  
 

Thoene introduced Resolution 2025-003 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION 
TO 

SET THE PROPERTY TAX REQUEST 
 

   WHEREAS, Nebraska Revised Statute 77-1601.02 provides that the property tax request 
for the prior year shall be the property tax request for the current year for purposes of the 
levy set by the County Board of Equalization unless the Governing Body of the Lower Loup 
Natural Resources District passes by a majority vote a resolution setting the tax request at a 
different amount; and 

 
WHEREAS, a special public hearing was held as required by law to hear and consider 

comments concerning the property tax request; and 
 

    WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Lower Loup Natural Resources District that the 
property tax request for the current year be a different amount than the property tax request 
for the prior year; 
 

WHEREAS, the total assessed value of property differs from last year’s total assessed 
value by 10 percent; 
 
 WHEREAS, the tax rate which would levy the same amount of property taxes as last year, 
when multiplied by the new total assessed value of property, would be $0.033000 per $100 of 
assessed value; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lower Loup Natural Resources District proposes to adopt a property tax 
request that will cause its tax rate to be $0.032759 per $100 of assessed value; 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the proposed property tax request and changes in other revenue, 
the total operating budget of Lower Loup Natural Resources District will change from last 
year’s by 8 percent; 

 
    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Governing Body of the Lower Loup Natural 
Resources District, by a majority vote, resolves that: 
 

1. The 2024-2025 property tax request be set at $6,486,975.05. 
2. A copy of this resolution be certified and forwarded to the Platte County Clerk on or 

before October 15, 2024. 
3. Any levy which is not in compliance with this section and section 77-1601 shall be 

construed as an unauthorized levy under section 77-1606. 



 
Smith motioned, seconded by Eschliman, to adopt Resolution FY2025-003: 

RESOLUTION TO SET THE PROPERTY TAX REQUEST. Motion carried by electronic 
vote, all present voting yes.  
 
FORESTER’S REPORT 
 
 Aron Lewis, Conservation Forester, reported that he has been busy with forestry 
improvement projects and Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) on people’s property to litigate 
wildfire. He stated there are currently eight forest stand improvement projects, eight fire projects, 
and three windbreak renovation projects he is working on. Lewis also stated he has had quite a 
few calls on sick trees, which is normal for this time of year. He attended the State Fair to judge 
4-H forestry projects. He added that he will be attending Husker Harvest Days next month and 
that next week he and three NRD employees are going to a windbreak renovation design 
workshop.  
 

Adams asked about the ash borer injections being done and if they are working. Lewis 
stated that they are just prolonging the inevitable, that they are coming and there is no stopping 
them. He added that there are a lot of companies that have started doing the treatments; however, 
they are expensive and must be repeated every year.  
 

R. Vlach asked which trees are native trees. Lewis stated that elm, ash, and cottonwood 
forests are native along rivers. He stated they are targeting Siberian elm, mulberry, and buckthorn 
to reduce their number, as well as cedar trees. Vlach asked what they are being replaced with. 
Lewis replied that they are just working on removal so the native trees can grow and fill in the 
space.  
 

Mohrman asked what the biggest problem has been with sick trees and Lewis replied that 
he has seen some hail storm damage as well as flooding and some dying from fungus due to the 
excess rains/moisture.  
 
NRCS REPORT 
 

Brooks Bechtold, NRCS, reported that they are expecting to hear back on the RCPP 
Project grant by October 1st. Callan stated that it was an $18 million grant. Bechtold stated that 
all the EQIP contracts have been written and they are working with producers on 
implementation. He added that they are receiving applications for next year.  
 

Bechtold reported that the Statewide DC meeting was held at the NRD the end of July.  
He added that they are making plans for the 2025 EQIP and that rankings and obligation will 
start in February. Bechtold also reported that they are advertising for more employees, as there 
are many people leaving, and stated that Abby Tilley from the Broken Bow office went to 
Indiana.  
 
  



INFORMATION & EDUCATION REPORT 
 
 Educational Events 
  

Alan Bartels, I&E Coordinator, reported that he and Jason Moudry, Water Programs 
Specialist, had attended the Palmer FFA “Test Your Water” night. He stated that the students and 
the public brought in samples, and dip tests, as well as the NRD’s testing machine, were used to 
read results. He stated there were a handful of high results and that one which had a reading of 
17.0 ppm. High readings were referred to a lab for an official result. Bartels stated that they are 
talking of doing another testing night in Genoa, Ord, and other schools in the District.  

 
Bartels added that he and Brant Bechtold, I&E Specialist, had each attended the State 

Fair on different days and worked with other NRDs and DNR.  
 

Bartels reported that Bechtold is organizing a bird watching event at Auble’s Pond next 
week and that he is working with the educator at the Forest Service to prepare to do a workshop 
for teachers and a field day in October.  
 

He added that he will attend Husker Harvest Days on the 13th and help at the tree 
giveaway station.  
 

Bartels added the MUDFEST will be held September 27th in the Arboretum and that he is 
expecting 100-120 students.  
 

Quarterly Newsletter 
 
Bartels reported that the quarterly newsletter “In The Loup” was mailed August 19th.  

 
NRD Annual Conference - Kearney 

  
Bartels stated that the Annual Conference registrations and reservations have been made 

and there are 26 staff and Directors planning to attend.   
 
 ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Recreation Areas 
  

Tylr Naprstek, Assistant General Manager, reported that water levels at Davis Creek were 
dropping and water is at about 2,070’ right now. He stated that the wintering level of 2,056’ is 
usually reached by mid-September. He added that camping sites are fully booked for the 
weekend and that the rest of September seems to be down, assuming that is due to the closing at 
the end of the month. He added that the last weekend of September will be Junk Jaunt and there 
is usually a fairly good crowd that comes in. Naprstek stated that there was an electrical event 
last weekend that caused no electricity for awhile and shut down the well.  
 



Vlach asked who deals with issues like this out there. Callan stated the camp host 
contacts Phil most of the time and he can either remedy the issue or get into contact with the 
electrician if necessary.  
 

Naprstek stated that the system goes dry when the power goes out and we get it running 
as soon as we can. He added that it was reset by a staff member. If a reset does not work, repairs 
would be made.  
 

Naprstek stated that staff is still sampling for microcystin blue-green algae and E. coli. 
He added that the Calamus triggered last week; however, this week levels are high but not above 
NDEE’s safe level. He added that the threshold is 8.0 ppm and this week’s test was at 7.6 ppm.  
He added that aerial footage of both Davis Creek and Pibel Lake has been added to the LLNRD 
website.  
 

Drought Meeting Report 
 

Naprstek showed the drought monitor map. He stated that he and Callan were in Beatrice 
recently and that everything looks really dry there. He reported that we will be closely watching 
the status going forward and analyzing static water levels. He stated that Area 19 in Howard 
County going into Nance and Merrick Counties tripped this spring for requiring a flow meter. He 
added that he and Callan have been discussing resuming the drought stakeholder meetings.  
 

Chemigation 
 
Naprstek reported that we have six field staff that have conducted 1,400 inspections out 

of 3,561 permitted chemigation sites. He added that there have been a lot of check valve failures 
this year. He said that those are required to be repaired before the producer can use the site to 
chemigate. He stated there will be a video put together on the inspection process. He added that 
there have been six emergency permits issued this year.  
 

Water Sampling 
 

Naprstek reported that there have been 1,400 irrigation samples taken and that we like to 
have 1,700-2,000 total. He said that results are compared to previous years readings and mailed 
to landowners with information on the last five readings obtained.  
 
ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
 Callan stated that Kevin Gustafson, District Engineer, was not present. Naprstek said that 
we have a Power Point he put together to show.  
 
 Pibel Lake Expansion Project 
 

Naprstek went over the breakdown of the Pibel Lake Expansion Grants that can be 
applied for. He stated that staff is looking at the Recreational Trails Program to convert the 
mowed path to concrete connecting the bridge to the day use area, the Land and Water 



Conservation Fund to install 10 camp sites with electricity, a shower house, a trail loop around 
the facility, and the Title 28 BOR Motor Boat Access Fund for a new boat ramp on the east side 
of Pibel Lake. He stated that the total grant funds being sought is $845,000.  
 

Adams asked if Pibel Lake is a no-wake lake. Naprstek stated that it is.  
 

Smith asked about the determination on the cottonwood tree at Pibel. Lewis replied that it 
has not been checked yet.  

 
Mud Creek WFPO 

 
Naprstek stated that the NRD is still waiting on the plan at NRCS Headquarters. He said 

that Gustafson is working with NRCS and JEO on a price to complete the designs on both the 
dams and the bypass channel north of Ansley and that we are not expecting to hear back until 
after October. Once NRCS concurs on the plan, then the State of Nebraska concurs with what has 
been done and funds can be approved and released and the agreement process can be started to 
obligate the funds, the NRD can enter into an agreement with JEO to start the project. 
  

Sargent Flood Project 
  

Naprstek reported that Gustafson is meeting with the landowners one-on-one and that 
there will be a Public Information meeting September 19th at 5:00 p.m. at the Community 
Building in Sargent. Callan added that there was also a meeting called by landowners, but he is 
unsure of how many went and that, with the new alignment, the project may not pass through the 
same properties as originally planned.  
  

Davis Creek Road Project 
 

Naprstek reported that the entrance road will be blocked off September 30th for 
construction to begin by Next Level Construction out of York, Nebraska.  
 
PROGRAMS/PROJECTS COMMITTEE 
 
 Hazard Mitigation Grant 
  

Kruse reported that Bartels is working on planning for the Hazard Mitigation Plan.  
  

Bartels added that the plan must be redone every 5 years and allows us to receive 
FEMA/NEMA money. The current plan doesn’t expire until 2027, but it’s a 1½-2 year process to 
complete the plan. He added that JEO has done the last couple of plans for us and that, 
historically, the NRD has gotten back a good return on funds entering the District, due to having 
the plan in place.  
 

Kruse motioned, seconded by Bauer, to pursue the Hazard Mitigation Grant. 
Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 



Pibel Lake Expansion Grants 
 

Kruse stated there was nothing more that was not covered in the Engineer’s Report and 
that the Committee’s recommendation was to proceed with grant applications for the project.  
 

Kruse motioned, seconded by Adams, to proceed with the project and apply for the 
grants discussed.  
 

Naprstek stated there are resolutions in the Supplemental Agenda to approve for a couple 
of the grant commitments.  
 

Vote held. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes. 
 
Callan introduced Resolution FY2025-004 as follows:  

 
RESOLUTION ON PIBEL LAKE TRAIL GRANT FUNDING APPLICATION 

 
1.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District is applying for federal assistance from the 

Recreational Trails Program for the purpose of constructing approximately 3,100 linear feet 
of concrete recreational trail that will be 10-foot wide and 5” to 7” thick.  

 
2.  The General Manager of Lower Loup Natural Resources District is authorized to sign the 

application for federal assistance, and any other official project documents that are necessary 
to obtain such assistance, including any agreements, contracts or other documents that are 
required by the State of Nebraska or the Federal Highway Administration. 

 
3.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District currently has the written commitment for the 

20% local matching share for the project elements that are identified on the Application form 
and the Supplemental Documents and will, as it becomes necessary, allocate the local funds 
for this project. 

 
4.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will commit the necessary financial resources to 

operate and maintain the completed project in a safe and attractive manner. 
 
5.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will not discriminate against any person on the 

basis of race, color, age, religion, disability, sex or national origin in the use of any property 
or facility that is acquired or developed pursuant to the project proposal, and shall comply 
with the terms and intent of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any of the regulations 
promulgated pursuant to such Act. 

 
6.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will comply with all rules and regulations of the 

Recreational Trails Program, applicable Executive Orders and all state laws that govern the 
grant applicant during the performance of the project. 

 
7.  The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will comply with the Federal disability access 

and use standards where they can be reasonably applied, in accord with the Americans with 
Disability Act of 1991. 



 
I certify that this resolution is a true copy of the original document that was adopted by the 
Lower Loup Natural Resources District at a properly advertised and announced public meeting 
held this 29th day of August 2024. 
 

R. Vlach motioned, seconded by Smith, to adopt Resolution FY2025-004: 
RESOLUTION ON PIBEL LAKE TRAIL GRANT FUNDING APPLICATION. Motion 
carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 

Callan introduced Resolution FY2025-005 as follows:  
 

RESOLUTION ON ACQUISITION OR DEVELOPMENT FOR OUTDOOR 
RECREATION 

 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District proposes to apply for federal assistance from the 
Land and Water Conservation Fund program for the purpose of making outdoor recreation 
enhancements at Pibel Lake, including ten new recreation vehicle (RV) camping pads (8 
standard and 2 ADA accessible pads) with electrical hookups and appropriate appurtenances. 
The campground will also feature incidentals such as a prefabricated shower/bath house, well 
and water system, and roadway loop. 
 
The General Manager is authorized to sign documents to obtain financial assistance, including a 
Project Agreement with the State of Nebraska and the National Park Service. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will, within sixty (60) days following federal 
approval, obtain the necessary consultant or appraisal service for this project as directed and 
as required by Nebraska Game and Parks Commission staff. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District has budgeted or currently has available its stated 
match of the proposed total project funds and will allocate these funds toward this project 
upon project approval by the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District has the financial capability to operate and 
maintain the completed project and park property is a safe, attractive, and sanitary manner. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will not discriminate against any person on the 
basis of race, color, age, religion, disability, sex or national origin in the use of any property 
or facility acquired or developed pursuant to the project proposal, and shall comply with the 
terms and intent of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, P.L. 88-354 (1964), and any of the 
regulations promulgated pursuant to such Act by the Secretary of the interior and contained in 
43 CFR 17. 
 
No property acquired and/or developed under this project shall, without the approval of the 
Nebraska Game and Parks Commission and the Secretary of the Interior, be converted to other 
than public outdoor recreation use. And, such approval may be granted only if it is in accord 
with the then existing Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP), and only 
upon such conditions as deemed necessary to assure the substitution of other outdoor recreation 



properties of at least equal fair market value and of reasonable equivalent usefulness and 
location. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District will replace the land in the event of a conversion 
in use in accordance with Section 6(f)(3) of the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 
1965, as amended. 
 
The Lower Loup Natural Resources District agrees to comply with all State and Federal 
requirements and standards where they can be applied in making the facilities developed 
under this project, and all future projects, accessible to and usable by the disabled. 
 
This is to certify that this resolution is a true copy of the original document that was adopted 
and passed by the Lower Loup Natural Resources District at a duly advertised public meeting 
held this 29th day of August 2024. 
 

Eschliman motioned, seconded by Knutson, to adopt Resolution FY2025-005: 
RESOLUTION ON ACQUISITION OR DEVELOPMENT FOR OUTDOOR RECREATION. 
Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 

St. Edward BRIC Grant 
 

Kruse reported that St. Edward is proceeding but a funding request has not been received 
by the NRD as of yet.  
 

Nebraska Forest Service Request 
 

Kruse reported that the Nebraska Forest Service has submitted a request to help fund the 
purchase of 3 UTV skid units at $5,000 each. Callan noted that the Nebraska Forest Service does 
a lot of prescribed fire operations and wildfire suppression projects around the District and that 
this would be a good cooperative effort. He also noted that Lower Loup NRD would not own the 
UTVs after the contribution towards them. 
 

Kruse motioned, seconded by Petersen, to approve funding not to exceed $20,000 for 
the Nebraska Forest Service UTV skid units. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present 
voting yes.  
 
WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
  

Large Water User Rule 
 
Naprstek reported that staff has been working with Blankenau and other entities on the 

rule revisions. He stated that the current rule requires a hydrologic report and it filled the needs 
in the past; however, there could be a large economic impact, so staff is working on writing a 
new rule and comparing to what other NRDs are doing. Naprstek stated that staff is looking at 
how to determine water use. He added that Lincoln has a good plan with requirements that ours 
may be modeled after. He stated that there will be more Committee discussion later.  



Callan added that he has reached out to HDR and is going to see if they can help with the 
rule as they have helped other NRDs before. Naprstek added that Blankenau thought a third party 
review would be good.  
 

Callan stated there are industries wanting to come in and take advantage of our cheap 
electricity and water but reviews need to be made on the economic impact this will have. He said 
that NRDs do have authorities to take economic impact into consideration. Podolak stated that 
NPPD is telling large water users that they can’t get power to these locations any sooner than 
2029.  
 

Nitrate Vulnerability Model – 2024 List 
 

Naprstek reported that Cacey Wilken, Water Modeling Coordinator, and Mike Lorenz, 
Agronomist, have looked at the last three years of data in Water Quality Management Areas 28, 
29, and 30, and have developed a list that considers all nitrate factors reported by producers. He 
said that the current rules state that those operating in “High” nitrate capacity get a letter and 
must do a nutrient management plan. He added that those in “Medium-High” receive a letter 
explaining the reading as well as information on best management practices.  
 

Flow Meter Telemetry/Real-time data 
 

Callan stated that he has had discussion with Governor Pillen and he feels that telemetry 
is a good addition and that he is pushing to be able to measure water use statewide. He added that 
it is not currently an eligible practice but would like to have it added and that a district wide flow 
meter cost-share has been discussed as well.  
 

Kruse clarified that the cost-share would be 50%.  
 

Mohrman asked if telemetry is required. Callan stated it would be optional.  
 

Thoene asked if grant funding was available. Callan stated there is about $350,000 from 
the BOR WaterSmart Grant, adding that in the last 1½ years there has been a push for flow 
meters. There is the possibility of other grants as well. He stated that all flow meters would be 
required to meet our installation specifications.  
 

Eschliman motioned, seconded by Mohrman, to offer cost-share for flow meter 
telemetry in Areas 18 and 20.  
 

Anderson asked why we are not offering it in Area 30. Callan stated that meters are 
already installed there and that Areas 18 and 20 are drought areas.  
 

Vote held. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 
Callan stated the other issue is to allow funds to be used to upgrade to telemetry.  

 



Smith motioned, seconded by King, to offer flow meter cost-share in the entire 
District with telemetry optional.  
 

Kruse asked if the cost-share would be on telemetry only. Callan stated it was discussed 
on both the meter and telemetry. Thoene added that this is voluntary at this time. Eschliman 
asked if telemetry would be required on these new meters. Callan stated it would be optional. 
Thoene asked for clarification on whether the NRD pays 100% cost-share on required meters 
now. Callan replied that the NRD currently pays 50%. Callan stated we had one program with 
NET that covered a percentage of the meter; however, that program has ended.  
 

Vote held. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 

Vadose Study Sampling Update 
 

Naprstek reported that Moudry and others have been able to get sampling done. He stated 
that they are making a sample run each month and will do a full vadose sample after harvest. He 
added that they did a bromide tracer application to track how nitrates move through the soil.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 Resignation of N. Richard Hadenfeldt 
 

Callan stated there was a letter from Hadenfeldt included in the agenda. He stated that a 
motion was needed to accept Hadenfeldt’s resignation and advertise the open position. 
 

Knutson motioned, seconded by Smith, to accept the resignation of N. Richard 
Hadenfeldt from the Board of Directors and advertise the open At-Large position.  
 

Thoene asked how long was left on the term. Callan stated 2 years. He added that we will 
notify the Secretary of State and the position can be appointed to finish the term.  
 

Vote held. Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  
 

Water Strategies Update 
 
 Callan reported that the normal updates are coming in. He added that the new Irrigation 
Leader magazine issue will have the Columbus Project highlighted and that he and Bartels are on 
the cover.  

 
Litigation Update 

 
 None. 
 

New Hires 
 
 None.  



Non-action Reports 
  

Callan stated that nothing has been changed for NRDs in the recent special session. He 
stated that Governor Pillen submitted LB1 tax cuts with the NRDs not included. He said there 
were amendments with us included; however, they were cut back.  

 
LB 1368 (Nitrogen Reduction Incentive Act) funding, working with DNR, is in draft 

form, potentially allotting approximately $63,000 to be paid out toward nitrate reducing 
practices, with two-thirds to be set aside for nitrate management areas 28, 29, and 30, and one-
third for District-wide practices, including dryland. 
 
NARD REPORT 
 
 Eschliman reported that there will be some resolutions up for passage at Fall Conference. 
He stated that Upper Niobrara White NRD is presenting one to not have a monthly Board 
meeting and that Lower Platte South NRD and Upper Niobrara White NRD are presenting one to 
allow for NRDs to make and receive electronic payments.  
 
NRC REPORT 
 
 Amsberry reported that there was a meeting August 14th in Kearney. He added that DNR 
Director Tom Reilly resigned and that Jesse Bradley has been appointed as Interim Director.  

 
Amsberry also reported that NSWCP does not currently fund both fabric and drip 

irrigation for trees and it was voted to allow funding for both. He also stated that there are two 
open positions on the NRC Board -- one for surface water and one for livestock producer.  
 

Knutson asked what the top project was for the Water Sustainability Fund. Amsberry 
stated it was the Santee project which would bring water from the river to the reservation since 
their water is currently not drinkable. He stated they would pipe water from a filtration plant in 
South Dakota and that $9.2 million was awarded on the federally mandated project. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/FUTURE MEETING TOPICS 
 

Callan stated he is working on reviewing recharge projects in Colorado and will get more 
information and set up times to go look at them.  
 

Podolak asked when the meeting time changes. Callan replied they would change in 
November.  
 

Smith motioned, seconded by Eschliman, to enter Executive Session at 6:38 p.m. 
Motion carried by electronic vote, all present voting yes.  

 
Callan, Naprstek and Harris were invited to stay for Executive Session. 
 

 



Eschliman motioned, seconded by Adams, to exit Executive Session at 7:20 p.m. 
Motion carried by electronic vote. Directors voting yes: Adams, Amsberry, Anderson, 
Bartak, Bauer, Eschliman, King, Kauk, Knutson, Kruse, Mohrman, Petersen, Smith, 
Thoene, and R. Vlach. Director not voting: Podolak. Directors absent: DeBower, 
Lukasiewicz, Nitsch, A. Vlach. 
 

Adams motioned, seconded by Podolak, to move forward with land purchase. 
Motion carried by electronic vote. Directors voting yes: Adams, Amsberry, Bartak, Bauer, 
Eschliman, King, Knutson, Kruse, Mohrman, Petersen, Podolak, Thoene, and R. Vlach. 
Director voting no: Kauk. Director’s abstaining: Anderson, Smith. Directors absent: 
DeBower, Lukasiewicz, Nitsch, A. Vlach. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 With no further business before the Board, Chairman Thoene declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 
 

Roster for attendance of this meeting and tally of votes cast on motions at this meeting 
are being filed with the official minutes of this meeting at the Lower Loup Natural Resources 
District’s Headquarters Office, 2620 Airport Drive, Ord, Nebraska. Publication notification of 
this meeting was made via a newspaper in each county within the district. The next Board of 
Directors meeting will be held September 26, 2024, at 5:00 p.m., at the Headquarters Office in 
Ord, Nebraska.    

    
           

      _____________________________________ 
            Larry Mohrman 
            Secretary 


	MINUTES
	WHEREAS, the Lower Loup Natural Resources District has completed and approved their FY-2025 Budget; and
	RESOLUTION ON PIBEL LAKE TRAIL GRANT FUNDING APPLICATION


